# CONTRACT FOR DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN

## HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

### **AND**

Lea & Elliott, Inc.

DATED: November 3, 2016

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 - PROJECT	4
ARTICLE 2 – CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION	4
ARTICLE 3 - SERVICES BY THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL	4
ARTICLE 4 – TIME	6
ARTICLE 5 - PAYMENTS TO THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL	6
ARTICLE 6 – OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM AUDITS, INSPECTIONS, OR ATTESTATION ENGAGEMENTS	10
ARTICLE 7 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS	11
ARTICLE 8 - INDEMNITY	13
ARTICLE 9 - INSURANCE COVERAGES AND LIMITS	15
ARTICLE 10 – WAIVER OF CLAIMS	22
ARTICLE 11 – CLAIMS AND DISPUTES	22
ARTICLE 12 - ASSISTANCE IN LITIGATION	23
ARTICLE 13 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST	23
ARTICLE 14 – NOTICES AND ADDRESS OF RECORD	23
ARTICLE 15 - TERM OF CONTRACT	24
ARTICLE 16 - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT	24

ARTICLE 17 – SUSPENSION OF WORK	25
ARTICLE 18 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS	25
ARTICLE 19 - TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS	25
ARTICLE 20 - CERTIFICATION OF DESIGN PROFESSIONAL/PROHIBITION AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES	25
ARTICLE 21 - PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME CERTIFICATION	26
ARTICLE 22 - CONTRACT MADE IN FLORIDA	26
ARTICLE 23 - NON-DISCRIMINATION	26
ARTICLE 24 – WOMAN AND MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (W/MBE) ASSURANC	ES. 29
ARTICLE 25 – PROHIBITION AGAINST CONTRACTING WITH SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES	31
ARTICLE 26 – E-VERIFY REQUIREMENT	31
ARTICLE 27 – COMPLETE CONTRACT	32
ATTACHMENT 1 – RATE TABLE	
ATTACHMENT 2 E VEDIEV CEDTIEICATION	

#### CONTRACT FOR DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Contract for Design Professional Services is made and entered into this 3rd day of November, 2016 by and between the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority, a public body corporate under the laws of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the "Owner", and Lea & Elliott, Inc., a Virginia Corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the "Design Professional". The Owner and the Design Professional hereby agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE 1 - PROGRAM

The program, hereinafter referred to as the Program, is as follows:

Provide design professional services in accordance with Section 287.055, Florida Statutes.

#### ARTICLE 2 - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

This Contract will be administered by the Owner's Chief Executive Officer or designee.

#### ARTICLE 3 - SERVICES BY THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

- 3.1 The services that the Design Professional will provide to the Owner under this Contract will be as follows, and in general accordance with the Owner's Request for Qualifications dated June 29, 2016, entitled "Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional", the Design Professional's Response to the Owner's Request for Qualifications dated August 3, 2016, entitled "Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional At Tampa International Airport", which are both incorporated herein by reference, and the Design Professional's Rate Table dated September 8, 2016, entitled "ATTACHMENT 1 RATE TABLE" which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference. In the event of any conflicts between this Contract and any other documents herein the precedence in resolving such conflicts will be as follows:
  - 3.1.1 This Contract
  - 3.1.2 Individual work order and Design Professional's associated Rate Table
  - 3.1.3 The Owner's Request for Qualifications
  - 3.1.4 Design Professional's Response to Request for Qualifications

- 3.2 Design Professional designates Sanjeev Shah, whose business address is 5200 Blue Lagoon Drive, Suite 250 Miami, Florida 33126, and who is a qualified licensed professional, to serve as the Program Manager. The Program Manager will be authorized and responsible to act on behalf of the Design Professional with respect to directing, coordinating and administering all aspects of the services to be provided and performed under this Contract. Design Professional designates Sanjeev Shah, whose title is Principal/Chief Strategy Officer, whose business address is 5200 Blue Lagoon Drive, Suite 250, Miami, Florida 33126, to have full authority to bind and obligate the Design Professional on all matters arising out of or relating to this Contract. The Design Professional agrees that the Program Manager will devote whatever time is required to satisfactorily manage the services to be provided and performed by the Design Professional hereunder. Any replacement of the Program Manager will be subject to the prior approval and acceptance of the Owner.
- 3.3 N/A
- 3.4 N/A
- 3.5 The Design Professional agrees, within seven days of receipt of a written request from the Owner, to promptly remove and replace the Program Manager, or any other personnel employed or retained by the Design Professional, or any subconsultants or subcontractors or any personnel of any such subconsultants or subcontractors engaged by the Design Professional to provide and perform services or work pursuant to the requirements of this Contract, whom the Owner will request in writing to be removed, which request may be made by the Owner with or without cause.
- 3.6 Work Order Process work orders are intended to be discrete working documents that will provide, in summary form, the background and factual context within which a particular work element or series of work elements will be completed by the Design Professional. Each work order will include a scope of services, level of effort and related costs. Work orders will be construed to be in addition to, supplementary to, and consistent with the provisions of this Contract. Upon request by the Owner, Design Professional will prepare and submit a work order to the Owner for review and approval. Work order forms will be provided by the Owner along with a detailed outline of design deliverables. Contracts involving multiple project numbers or airport locations will require work orders to identify basic services and reimbursement expense amounts per project and/or location.
- 3.7 The Design Professional will perform professional services provided for in each work order executed between the parties. Such professional services will be performed in accordance with the terms of this Contract. The Design Professional will be solely responsible for the technical completeness and accuracy of all work performed under this Contract.
- 3.8 The Design Professional will comply with all Owner Rules, Regulations, Policies, Standard Procedures and Operating Directives.

#### ARTICLE 4 - TIME

- 4.1 Services to be rendered by the Design Professional will commence subsequent to the execution of this Contract in accordance with each work order. Time is of the essence with respect to the performance of this Contract.
- 4.2 Should the Design Professional fail to commence, provide, perform or complete any of the services to be provided in a timely and diligent manner, in addition to any other rights or remedies available to the Owner, the Owner at its sole discretion and option may withhold any and all payments due and owing to the Design Professional until such time as the Design Professional resumes performance of its obligations in such a manner so as to satisfy the Owner.

#### ARTICLE 5 - PAYMENTS TO THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

- 5.1 The amount for the performance of basic services and direct and reimbursable expenses required under this Contract, will be in a not-to-exceed amount of Seventeen Million Nine Hundred Thirty Thousand and No One-Hundredth Dollars (U.S.) (\$17,930,000), which includes all fees for subconsultants.
- 5.2 N/A
- 5.3 N/A
- 5.4 Invoiced amounts will be based on the Design Professional's and Team member's most recent audited overhead rate or agreed upon overhead rate, personnel direct labor rates, negotiated profit and actual time billed to the project as substantiated by backup acceptable to the Owner and supported by monthly progress reports:
  - 5. 4.1 Invoiced amounts for multiple projects or multiple locations must be identified per project and/or location.
  - 5.4.2 All subconsultant agreements must be submitted at time of billing. Subconsultant agreements must include a provision providing the Owner the same rights to audit at the subconsultant level in all of its subconsultant agreements executed to effect project completion.
  - 5.4.3 An employee basic services spreadsheet based on Attachment 1 RATE TABLE in Excel format listing the employee's name, employee's classification and employee's raw rate must be submitted before the professional service invoice submittal. If there are changes such as new employees, new classification or new raw rate, then a labor change indicator must be completed on an updated basic services spreadsheet. Any changes to an employee basic services spreadsheet must have prior approval by the Owner. All basic service billings must be accompanied by a rate & hour verification sheet submitted within the submittal as

- well as in Microsoft Excel format.
- 5.4.4 Basic services invoices that are submitted with a professional service invoice that are older than 90 days before the submission date will not be reimbursed. Basic services performed before the work order effective date will not be reimbursed.
- 5.4.5 Timesheets are required as supporting backup for all basic services invoice amounts. Hours billed must be clearly identified.
- 5.4.6 Overtime on any basic services must be pre-approved by the Owner.
- 5.4.7 Basic services must be organized using standard separators to identify the basic services being billed.
- 5.4.8 Rebalancing between tasks or fees must be requested with the first overage billing, along with an explanation for the overage and confirmation that the total Contract amount will not be exceeded. Proposed supporting sheets are to be submitted at the request for rebalancing.
- 5.4.9 All permit requirements, acceptable deliverables and badges are required to be submitted seven days before submission of a final professional service invoice.
- 5.4.10 If deficiencies are found, a standard deficiency e-mail will be sent to the Design Professional to resolve within three business days. If the deficiency is not resolved within that time, the professional service invoice will be returned.
- 5.5 Payments for Reimbursable Expenses. The Design Professional will be reimbursed at cost for all expenses, except travel and subsistence which will be reimbursed in accordance with Owner Policy, in an amount not to exceed the maximum reimbursable amount provided for in each individual work order. Each work order under this Contract will identify the type of expenses that will be eligible for reimbursement and the maximum reimbursable amount for that work order. As specified hereinafter, the Design Professional's direct and reimbursable expenses include only:
  - 5.5.1 The cost of securing a recognized testing laboratory which will perform all soils and sub-surface investigations, tests, reports and recommendations required for schematic and final design and construction of the Program.
  - 5.5.2 The cost of securing a recognized testing laboratory which will perform all necessary testing of materials and all shop and mill inspection of materials and equipment as will be required during construction of the assigned work in the Program.
  - 5.5.3 The cost of boundary surveys, topographic surveys, land surveys, establishment of boundaries and monuments, field surveys, photogrammetry, field layouts of construction, construction layout, control staking, and related office computations

- and drafting.
- 5.5.4 The cost of outside special consultants to advise and assist Design Professional throughout the Program.
- 5.5.5 The actual cost of reproduction of review plans and specifications, the construction contract plans and specifications required for the securing of bids for the assigned work in the Program and for the use of contractors, subcontractors, testing laboratories, and others having need for such prints during construction.
- 5.5.6 All costs for long distance telephone calls, postage and overnight express delivery and couriers related to the Program.
- 5.5.7 Expenses for parking at Tampa International Airport and transportation related to the Program including airplane travel and automobile; and, in the event overnight travel related to the Project is required, cost of meals and lodging. All travel expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the Owner's Policy and Standard Procedure on Travel Expenses, as may be amended from time to time. Only travel expenses incurred in the performance of the Owner's business are reimbursable. The most efficient and economical means of transportation is required. All travel must be pre-approved by the Owner. Employee expense sheets are required as well as supporting original or legible copies of all receipts.
- 5.5.8 Materials for study models, film and processing expenses.
- 5.5.9 N/A
- 5.5.10 Invoiced amounts for multiple projects or multiple locations must be identified per project and/or location.
- 5.5.11 All subconsultant signed agreements must be submitted at time of billing. Subconsultant agreements must include a provision providing the Owner the same rights to audit at the subconsultant level in all of its subconsultant agreements executed to effect project completion.
- 5.5.12 Receipts/Invoices that are submitted with a professional service invoice that are older than 90 days before the submission date will not be reimbursed. Receipts/Invoices for expenses before the work order effective date will not be reimbursed.
- 5.5.13 Mileage within the Tri-County Area (Hillsborough, Pinellas, Pasco) will not be reimbursed. Mileage is part of travel which must be pre-approved by the Owner.
- 5.5.14 Legible copies of receipts/invoices that have not been altered are required for reimbursement. Receipts/Invoices must be identified by employee and employer, and include justification of expense.

- 5.5.15 Equipment purchased for and paid by the Owner must be identified when invoiced so that an asset tag can be attached to that equipment. A detail listing in Excel format must be submitted with the invoice when equipment is purchased.
- 5.5.16 No purchases of alcohol will be reimbursed by the Owner.
- 5.5.17 Meals for Owner or local consultant staff members will not be reimbursed.
- 5.5.18 No front loading on progress payments is allowed. Progress payments are limited to the actual invoiced amounts.
- 5.5.19 Pre-approval from the Owner is necessary for office or petty cash expenditures.
- 5.5.20 Reimbursable expenses must be presented as a package organized in the following manner: Reimbursement Tracking Form, actual invoices identifying item numbers as it appears on the Reimbursement Tracking Form. The Reimbursement Tracking Form is required to be submitted electronically in Microsoft Excel format, as is the supporting documentation for the submitted professional service invoice.
- 5.5.21 Rebalancing between tasks or fees must be requested with the first overage billing, along with an explanation for the overage and confirmation that the total Contract amount will not be exceeded. Proposed supporting sheets are to be submitted at the request for rebalancing.
- 5.5.22 All permit requirements, acceptable deliverables and badges are required to be submitted seven days before submission of a final professional service invoice.
- 5.5.23 If deficiencies are found, a standard deficiency e-mail will be sent to the Design Professional to resolve within three business days. If the deficiency is not resolved within that time, the professional service invoice will be returned.
- 5.6 In the event that it is established during the design phase that there will be substantial changes to the scope of the Program as originally proposed and upon which the compensation is based, a change in said compensation will be negotiated prior to further development of the design.
- 5.7 One executed original sworn and notarized invoice for services, verified to the satisfaction of the Owner, will be rendered by the twenty-fifth of each month electronically to DesignInvoice@TampaAirport.com. The Design Professional will submit with each invoice one original of a detailed accounting of the value of work performed to date by certified Woman and Minority Business Enterprises (W/MBE). This accounting will include the names and addresses of W/MBEs that have participated, a description of the work each named DBE has performed, and the value of work performed by each named W/MBE. The Design Professional will also submit with each invoice a Rate & Hour Verification Sheet and a Reimbursement Tracking Form, both in Microsoft Excel format.

- 5.8 Whenever compensation is paid to the Design Professional on a reimbursable basis, records as to the direct expense will be kept on a generally recognized accounting basis and will be submitted with each invoice.
- 5.9 Any compensation paid pursuant to a not-to-exceed amount will constitute full payment for all costs including, but not limited to, employee benefits, overhead, general administrative costs, profit and all other unallocated expenses.
- 5.10 The Design Professional agrees to pay each subcontractor under this Contract for satisfactory performance of its agreement no later than 10 days from the receipt of each payment the Design Professional receives from the Owner. The Design Professional agrees further to release retainage payments to each subconsultant within 10 days after the subconsultant's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above-referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written notice to the Owner. This clause applies to both W/MBE and non- W/MBE subconsultants.
- 5.11 With the exception of the month of September, all applications for payment will be submitted to the Owner by the twenty-fifth of each month. In the event that the twenty-fifth of the month falls on a Saturday or Sunday, applications for payment are due the next business day. Payment will be made by the third Friday of the month. Applications for payment submitted more than 20 days prior to the third Friday of the month will be rejected and returned. Due to the end of fiscal year financial closeout, September applications for payment will be submitted by September 19th, and in the event that the 19th falls on a Saturday or Sunday, applications for payment are due the next business day and subsequent payments will be made the second Friday of October. Such applications for payment submitted more than 20 days prior to the second Friday of October will be rejected and returned.

# ARTICLE 6 - <u>OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM AUDITS, INSPECTIONS, OR ATTESTATION ENGAGEMENTS</u>

6.1 Engagement(s) as used in this Contract include, but are not limited to, Audits, Inspections, or Attestation Engagements. In connection with payments to the Design Professional under this Contract, it is agreed the Design Professional will maintain adequate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Owner, Florida Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation Administration, Federal Highway Administration, Florida Department of Financial Services, Florida Auditor General, Florida Inspector General, Florida Chief Financial Officer, and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any duly authorized representative of each, have the right to initiate and perform Engagements over the Design Professional's records for the purpose of determining payment eligibility under the Contract or over selected operations performed by Design Professional under this Contract for the purpose of determining compliance with the Contract. Access will be to all of the Design Professional's records, including books, documents, papers, and records of Design Professional directly pertinent to this Contract or any work order, as well as records of parent, affiliate and subsidiary companies. If the records are kept at locations other than Tampa International Airport, Design Professional will arrange for said records to be brought to a location convenient to Owner's auditors to conduct Engagements as set forth in this Article. Or, Design Professional may transport Owner's team to location where the records are kept other than Tampa International Airport for purposes of undertaking Engagements. In such event, Design Professional will pay reasonable costs of transportation, food and lodging for Owner's team in accordance with Owner's Travel and Business Development Expenses Policy. Design Professional agrees to deliver or provide access to all records requested by Owner's auditors within 14 business days of the request at the initiation of Engagement and to deliver or provide access to all other records requested during the Engagement within 7 business days of each request. The parties recognize that Owner will incur damages if records requested by Owner's auditors are not provided in a timely manner and that the amount of those costs is difficult to determine with certainty. Consequently, the parties agree that Design Professional may be charged liquidated damages of \$100.00, for each item in a records request, per business day, for each time Design Professional is late in submitting requested records to perform an Engagement. Accrual of fee will continue until specific performance is accomplished. This liquidated damages rate is not an exclusive remedy and Owner retains its rights including but not limited to its rights to elect its remedies and pursue all legal and equitable remedies. The parties expressly agree that these liquidated damages are not a penalty and represent reasonable estimates of fair compensation for the losses that reasonably may be anticipated from such failure to comply.

- 6.2 In the event the Design Professional maintains its accounting or Program information in electronic format, upon request by the Owner's auditors, the Design Professional will provide a download or extract of its accounting or Program information in a computer readable format acceptable to the Authority at no additional cost.
- 6.3 The Owner has the right during the Engagement to interview the Design Professional's employees and subconsultants, make photocopies, and inspect any and all records at reasonable times. The right to initiate an Engagement will extend for six years after the completion date of any work order, or six years after the termination of this Contract, whichever occurs later.
- 6.4 In the event the Design Professional has overcharged the Owner for direct and reimbursable expenses, the Design Professional will re-pay the Owner the amount of the overcharge and the Owner may assess interest of up to 12% per year on the overcharge from the date the overcharge occurred. In addition, if the Design Professional has overcharged the Owner by more than 3% of the gross direct and reimbursable amount, the Owner may assess and the Design Professional will pay for the entire cost of the Engagement.
- 6.5 The Design Professional shall require all of its subcontractors and subconsultants to provide the Owner the same rights to perform Engagements as allowed in this Contract. The Design Professional shall require that all of its subcontractors and subconsultants require their sub-subcontractors and sub-subconsultants to provide the Owner the same rights to perform Engagements as allowed in this Contract.
- 6.6 Approvals by Owner's staff for any services included or not included in this Contract do not act as a waiver or limitation of the Owner's right to perform Engagements.

#### **ARTICLE 7 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS**

- 7.1 Design Professional acknowledges and agrees that all records, documents, drawings, notes, tracings, plans, specifications, maps, evaluations, reports and other technical data, models, renderings and electronic data, (other than working papers), prepared, developed or furnished by Design Professional or the design professional(s) employed or retained by the Design Professional under this Contract (Project Documents) will be and remain the property of the Owner. Project Documents will be deemed to be works made for hire, and all right, title and interest in and to the Project Documents will be vested in Owner. Design Professional will take all actions necessary to secure for Owner all such right, title and interest. Design Professional warrants that all materials comprising the Project Documents are original with Design Professional and have not been copied or derived from any other material without the express written consent of the owner, proprietor and/or copyright holder of that other material, and are not subject to any other claim of copyright by any other person. Design Professional will obtain any and all licenses necessary for the production and preparation of the Project Documents including, without limitation, licenses for the use of any material subject to copyright by other parties. Design Professional will assign to Owner any and all rights, including any copyrights, in the Project Documents that Design Professional or the design professional(s) employed or retained by the Design Professional on this Project may possess now or in the future, and Design Professional and its design professional(s) will claim no rights adverse to Owner in the Project Documents. Any project as designed by Design Professional under this Contract may be reused or repeated by Owner at Owner's option or discretion at any time or times, including but not limited to, completion, addition, renovation, maintenance, reconstruction or remodeling of the project and construction of new projects; with concurrence of Design Professional, which concurrence should not be unreasonably withheld. Design Professional hereby grants its consent to reuse of the Project Documents by Owner for any and all such purposes. The Design Professional will incorporate the terms of this paragraph in all contracts with design professionals employed or retained by the Design Professional to perform services covered by this Contract. Design Professional may make copies of any and all documents for its files only. Nothing herein may be construed to transfer Owner any ownership, interest or right in any of the Design Professional's intellectual property, trade secrets or know how that is pre-existing before commencement of this Contract, or that is derived independent of Design Professional's performance of this Contract. Design Professional shall be entitled to use any such material without restriction.
- 7.2 Submission or distribution of the Design Professional's Project Documents to meet official regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Program is not to be construed as publication in derogation of the rights reserved in Paragraph 3.8.
- 7.3 CHAPTER 119, FLA. STATUTES REQUIREMENTS

IF THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:

(813) 870-8721, <u>ADMCENTRALRECORDS@TAMPAAIRPORT.COM</u>, HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY, P.O. BOX 22287, TAMPA FL

#### 33622.

Design Professional agrees in accordance with Florida Statute Section 119.0701 to comply with public records laws including the following:

- a. Keep and maintain public records required by the Owner in order to perform the work contemplated by this Contract.
- b. Upon request from the Owner's custodian of public records, provide the Owner with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Fla. Stat. or as otherwise provided by law.
- c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Contract and following completion of the Contract.
- d. Upon completion of this Contract, keep and maintain public records required by the Owner to perform the work. Design Professional shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Owner, upon request from the Owner's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of Owner.

#### ARTICLE 8 INDEMNITY

- 8.1 To the maximum extent permitted by Florida law, in addition to Design Professional's obligation to provide pay for and maintain insurance as set forth elsewhere in the Contract, Design Professional will indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its members, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from any and all liabilities, suits, claims, expenses, losses, costs, fines and damages (including but not limited to claims for attorney's fees and court costs) caused in whole or in part by the:
  - 1. presence on, use or occupancy of Owner's property;
  - 2. negligence (including professional negligence and malpractice), recklessness, intentional wrongful conduct, activities, or operations;
  - 3. any breach of the terms of this Contract;
  - 4. N/A
  - 5. violation of any law, regulation, rule or ordinance;
  - 6. infringement of any patent, copyright, trademark, trade dress or trade secret rights; and/or

7. contamination of the soil, groundwater, surface water, storm water, air or the environment by fuel, gas, chemicals or any other substance deemed by the Environmental Protection Agency or other regulatory agency to be an environmental contaminant;

by the Design Professional or the Design Professional's officers, employees, agents, volunteers, subcontractors, invitees, or any other person directly or indirectly employed or utilized by the Design Professional, regardless of whether the liability, suit, claim, expense, loss, cost, fine or damages is caused in part by an indemnified party.

- 8.2 In addition to the duty to indemnify and hold harmless, Design Professional will have the separate and independent duty to defend the Owner, its members, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from all suits, claims or actions of any nature seeking damages, expenses, losses, costs, fines or attorney's fees in the event the suit, claim, or action of any nature arises in whole or in part from the:
  - 1. presence on, use or occupancy of Owner property;
  - 2. negligence (including professional negligence and malpractice), recklessness, intentional wrongful conduct, activities, or operations;
  - 3. any breach of the terms of this Contract;
  - 4. N/A
  - 5. violation of any law, regulation, rule or ordinance;
  - 6. infringement of any patent, copyright, trademark, trade dress or trade secret rights; and/or
  - 7. contamination of the soil, groundwater, surface water, storm water, air or the environment by fuel, gas, chemicals or any other substance deemed by the Environmental Protection Agency or other regulatory agency to be an environmental contaminant;

by the Design Professional or the Design Professional's officers, employees, agents, volunteers, subcontractors, invitees, or any other person directly or indirectly employed or utilized by the Design Professional regardless of whether it is caused in part by the Owner, its members, officers, agents, employees, or volunteers. This duty to defend exists immediately upon presentation of written notice of a suit, claim or action of any nature to the Design Professional by a party entitled to a defense hereunder.

8.3 If the above indemnity or defense provisions or any part of the above indemnity or defense provisions are limited by Fla. Stat. § 725.06(2)-(3) or Fla. Stat. § 725.08, then with respect to the part so limited, Design Professional agrees to the following: To the maximum extent permitted by Florida law, Design Professional will indemnify and hold harmless the

Owner, its members, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from any and all liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fee, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful conduct of the Design Professional and persons employed or utilized by the Design Professional in the performance of this Contract.

- 8.4 If the above indemnity or defense provisions or any part of the above indemnity or defense provisions are limited by Florida Stat. § 725.06 (1), or any other applicable law, then with respect to the part so limited, the monetary limitation on the extent of the indemnification shall be the greater of the (i) monetary value of this Contract, (ii) coverage amount of Commercial General Liability Insurance required under this Contract, or (iii) \$1,000,000.00. Otherwise, the obligations of this Paragraph will not be limited by the amount of any insurance required to be obtained or maintained under this Contract.
- 8.5 Design Professional's obligations to defend and indemnify as described in this Paragraph will survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract until it is determined by final judgment that any suit, claim or other action against the Owner, its members, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers if fully and finally barred by the applicable statute of limitations or repose.
- 8.6 Nothing in this Paragraph will be construed as a waiver of any immunity from or limitation of liability the Owner, or its members, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers may have under the doctrine of sovereign immunity under common law or statute.
- 8.7 The Owner and its members, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers reserve the right, at their option, to participate in the defense of any suit, without relieving Design Professional of any of its obligations under this Paragraph.
- 8.8 If the above Article 8.1 to 8.8 or any part of Article 8.1 to 8.8 are deemed to conflict in any way with any law, the Article or part of the Article will be considered modified by such law to remedy the conflict.

#### **ARTICLE 9 - INSURANCE COVERAGES AND LIMITS**

- 9.1 Design Professional's Liability Insurance
  - 9.1.1 Design Professional will maintain the following limits and coverages uninterrupted or amended through the life of this Contract. In the event the Design Professional becomes in default of the following requirements, the Owner reserves the right to take whatever actions deemed necessary to protect its interest. Required liability and property insurance policies, other than Workers' Compensation/Employer's Liability and Professional Liability, will provide that the Owner, members of the Owner's governing body, and the Owner's officers, volunteers, agents, volunteers and employees are included as additional insureds. Design Professional shall require that all subcontractors and subconsultants maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein with

the sole exception that Design Professional shall determine the applicable limits for its subcontractors and subconsultants. Design Professional shall have subcontractors and subconsultants endorse all applicable policies to name the Owner, members of the Owner's governing body, and the Owner's officers, agents, volunteers and employees as Additional Insureds. Before subcontractor or subconsultant commences services under this Contract, Design Professional will submit evidence that the subcontractor or subconsultant has complied with this provision to Owner.

#### 9.1.2 Workers' Compensation / Employer's Liability

The minimum limits of insurance inclusive of any amount provided by an umbrella or excess policy will be:

Part One:	"Statutory"
Part Two:	
Each Accident	\$ 1,000,000
Disease - Policy Limit	\$ 1,000,000
Disease - Each Employee	\$ 1,000,000

#### 9.1.3 Commercial General Liability

The minimum limits of insurance inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy without exclusion for independent contractors, XCU, or broad form property damage covering the work performed pursuant to this Contract will be the amounts specified herein. Coverage will be provided for liability resulting out of, or in connection with, ongoing operations performed by, or on behalf of, the Design Professional under this Contract or the use or occupancy of Owner premises by, or on behalf of, the Design Professional in connection with this Contract. Coverage shall be per form CG 00 01 or its equivalent. Additional insurance coverage shall be per ISO Form CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01 or their equivalent.

	Contract Specific
General Aggregate	\$ 1,000,000
Each Occurrence	\$ 1,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury	\$ 1,000,000
Products and Completed Operations	\$ 1,000,000

#### 9.1.4 Business Auto Liability

Coverage will be provided for all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles. Coverage shall be per form CA 00 01 or its equivalent.

The minimum limits of insurance inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy covering the work performed pursuant to this Contract will be:

#### 9.1.5 Professional Liability

Such insurance will be maintained throughout the Program and for three years following completion of the Program work by the Design Professional. Any deductible amount over \$50,000 must be approved in writing by the Owner. Coverage will include all work of the Design Professional, including but not limited to areas with possible environmental impact, without any exclusions unless approved in writing by the Owner. The limits of coverage will not be less than:

Each Occurrence Annual Aggregate \$ 1,000,000 \$ 1,000,000

9.1.6 Environmental Impairment (Pollution) Liability:

N/A

#### 9.2 CONTRACTUAL INSURANCE TERMS AND CONDITIONS

9.2.1 PURPOSE: To establish the insurance terms and conditions associated with contractual insurance requirements.

#### 9.2.2 INSURANCE COVERAGE:

#### 9.2.2.1 Procurement of Coverage:

With respect to each of the required coverages the Design Professional will, at the Design Professional's expense, procure, maintain and keep in force the amounts and types of insurance conforming to the minimum requirements set forth in this Contract. Coverage will be provided by insurance companies eligible to do business in the State of Florida and having an AM best rating of A- or better and a financial size category of VII or better. Utilization of non-rated companies or companies with AM Best ratings lower than A- or better and financial size category lower than VII may be approved on a case by case basis. Such insurance will be no more restrictive than that provided by the latest edition filed for use in the State of Florida by the insurance service office, without restrictive endorsements. If the insurer does not meet these requirements, the Owner retains the right to approve or disapprove the use of the insurer.

#### 9.2.2.2 Term of Coverage:

Except as otherwise specified in this Contract, the insurance will commence on or prior to the effective date of this Contract and will be maintained in force

throughout the duration of this Contract. Five years' completed operations coverage must be maintained on all general liability policies and all professional liability policies, effective on the date of substantial completion of the design phase or the termination of this Contract, whichever is earlier. If Professional or Pollution liability coverage required is written on a claims made coverage form, the retroactive date must be shown, and this date must be before the earlier of the execution date of the Contract or the beginning of Contract work.

#### 9.2.2.3 Reduction of Aggregate Limits:

If any reduction of an aggregate limit occurs, the Design Professional will take immediate steps to have it reinstated. The policies shall be endorsed so that the specified policy limits are available for claims on this Program.

#### 9.2.2.4 Cancellation Notice

Each of the insurance policies will be specifically endorsed to require the insurer to provide the Owner with 30 days written notice prior to the cancellation of the policy. The endorsement will specify that such notice will be sent to:

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Attn.: Chief Executive Officer Tampa International Airport Post Office Box 22287 Tampa, Florida 33622

#### 9.2.2.5 No waiver by approval/disapproval:

The Owner accepts no responsibility for determining whether the Design Professional's insurance is in full compliance with the insurance required by this Contract. Neither the approval by the Owner nor the failure to disapprove the insurance furnished by the Design Professional will relieve the Design Professional of their full responsibility to provide the insurance required by this Contract.

#### 9.2.2.6 Future Modifications – Changes in Circumstances:

#### 9.2.2.6.1 Changes in Coverage and Required Limits of Insurance

The coverage and minimum limits of insurance required by this Contract are based on circumstances in effect at the inception of this Contract. If in the opinion of the Owner circumstances merit a change in such coverage or minimum limits of insurance required by this Contract, the Owner may change the coverage and minimum limits of insurance required and the Design Professional will, within 60 days of receipt of written notice of a change in the coverage and minimum limits required,

comply with such change and provide evidence of such compliance in the manner required by this Contract. Provided, however, that no change in the coverage or minimum limits of insurance required will be made by the Owner until at least two years after inception of this Contract. Any change in coverage will be reasonable. Reasonable additional costs related to Owner mandated changes arisen from this Contract will be paid for by the Owner. Subsequent changes in the coverage or minimum limits of insurance will not be made by the Owner until at least two years after any prior change by the Owner unless extreme conditions warrant such change and are agreeable to both parties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Design Professional may make a written request for a waiver with respect to the insurance requirements contained herein for specific subcontractors and subconsultants for good cause and the Owner will evaluate the request for waiver within ten calendar days of receipt and issue a decision. Any such modification will be subject to the prior written approval of the Owner and subject to the conditions of such approval.

Owner expressly reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to adjust this Contract and pursue alternative methods for the provision of insurance and ancillary services associated with this Program. Alternative methods may include, but are not limited to, a controlled insurance program.

If, in the opinion of the Owner, compliance with the insurance requirements is not commercially practicable for the Design Professional, at the written request of the Design Professional, the Owner may, at its sole discretion and subject to any conditions it deems appropriate, relax or temporarily suspend, in whole or in part, the insurance requirements which would otherwise apply to the Design Professional. Any such modification will be subject to the prior written approval of the Owner and subject to the conditions of such approval.

#### 9.2.2.7 Proof of Insurance – Insurance Certificate:

#### 9.2.2.7.1 Prior to Work, Use or Occupancy of Owner Premises

The Design Professional will not commence work, or use or occupy Owner premises in connection with this Contract until the required insurance is in force, preliminary evidence of insurance acceptable to the Owner has been provided to the Owner, and the Owner has granted permission to the Design Professional to commence work or use or occupy the premises in connection with this Contract.

#### 9.2.2.7.2 Proof of Insurance Coverage

As preliminary evidence of compliance with the insurance required by this Contract, the Design Professional will furnish the Owner with a certificate(s) of insurance satisfactory to the Owner. This certificate must be signed by an authorized representative of the insurer. Design Professional shall furnish the entity with endorsements effecting coverage as required by this Article. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. If requested by the Owner, the Design Professional will, within 30 days after receipt of written request from the Owner, provide the Owner, or make available for review, a certified complete copy of the policies of insurance. The Design Professional may redact those portions of the insurance policies that are not relevant to the coverage required by this Contract. The Design Professional will provide the Owner with renewal or replacement evidence of insurance, acceptable to the Owner, prior to expiration or termination of such insurance.

#### 9.2.2.7.3 The insurance certificate must:

- 9.2.2.7.3.1 Indicate that, to the extent required by this Contract, the Owner, members of the Owner's governing body, and the Owner's officers, agents, volunteers and employees are included as additional insured;
- 9.2.2.7.3.2 Indicate that the certificate has been issued in connection with this Contract;
- 9.2.2.7.3.3 Indicate the amount of any deductible or self-insured retention applicable to all coverages;
- 9.2.2.7.3.4 Identify the name and address of the certificate holder as:

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Attn.: Chief Executive Officer Tampa International Airport Post Office Box 22287 Tampa, Florida 33622; and

9.2.2.7.3.5 Be signed and dated using approved methods by an individual who is an authorized representative of each insurer, whose insurance is the subject of the certificate and who is authorized by each such insurer to issue the certificate of insurance as modified. Facsimile signatures are acceptable.

#### 9.2.2.8 Deductibles / Self Insurance:

- 9.2.2.8.1 All property and builders risk deductibles, as well as all self-insured retentions or any schemes other than a fully insured program, must be approved by the Owner. The Design Professional agrees to provide all documentation necessary for the Owner to review the deductible or alternative program.
- 9.2.2.8.2 The Design Professional will pay on behalf of the Owner, or any member of the Owner's governing body or any officer or employee of the Owner, any deductible or self-insured retention (SIR) which, with respect to the required insurance, is applicable to any claim by or against the Owner or any member of the Owner's governing body, or any officer or employee of the Owner.
- 9.2.2.8.3 The agreement by the Owner to allow the use of a deductible or self-insurance program will be subject to periodic review by Owner's Risk Management Department. If, at any time, the Owner deems that the continued use of a deductible or self-insurance program by the Design Professional should not be permitted, the Owner may, upon 60 days written notice to the Design Professional, require the Design Professional to replace or modify the deductible or self-insurance in a manner satisfactory to the Owner.
- 9.2.2.8.4 Any deductible amount or SIR program will be included and clearly described on the certificate prior to any approval by the Owner. This is to include fully insured programs as to a zero deductible per the policy. Owner reserves the right to deny any certificate not in compliance with this requirement.

#### 9.2.2.9 Design Professional's Insurance Primary:

The Design Professional's required insurance will apply on a primary basis. Any insurance maintained by the Owner will be excess and will not contribute to the insurance provided by or on behalf of the Design Professional. All policies will be endorsed so that Florida law will govern the interpretation of the policy including but not limited to Part II of Chapter 627 F.S.

9.2.2.10 Design Professional's Failure to Comply with Insurance Requirements:

#### 9.2.2.10.1 Owner's Right to Procure Replacement Insurance

If after the inception of this Contract the Design Professional fails to fully comply with the insurance requirements of this Contract, in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedy available to the Owner provided by this Contract, the Owner may, at its sole discretion, procure and maintain on behalf of the Design Professional, insurance which provides, in whole

or in part, the required insurance.

9.2.2.10.2 Replacement Coverage at Sole Expense of Design Professional

The entire cost of any insurance procured by the Owner pursuant to this section will be paid by the Design Professional without reimbursement from the Owner. At the option of the Owner, the Design Professional will either directly pay the entire cost of the insurance or immediately reimburse the Owner for any costs incurred by the Owner, including premium and a 15% administration cost.

#### 9.2.2.10.3 Design Professional to Remain Fully Liable

Except to the extent any insurance procured by the Owner pursuant to this section actually provides the insurance coverage required by this Contract, the Design Professional will remain fully liable for full compliance with the insurance requirements in this Contract.

#### 9.2.2.10.4 Owner's Right to Terminate, Modify, or Not Procure

Any insurance procured by the Owner pursuant to this section is solely for the Owner's benefit and is not intended to replace or supplement any insurance coverage which otherwise would have been maintained by the Design Professional. Owner is not obligated to procure any insurance pursuant to these requirements and retains the right, at its sole discretion, to terminate any such insurance which might be procured by the Owner pursuant to this section.

#### **ARTICLE 10 - WAIVER OF CLAIMS**

The Design Professional's acceptance of final payment for any individual work order will constitute a full waiver of any and all claims by Design Professional against the Owner arising out of this Contract or individual work order or otherwise related to the Program, except insurance company subrogation claims and other claims previously made in writing and identified by Design Professional as unsettled at the time of the final payment. Neither the acceptance of Design Professional's services nor payment by the Owner will be deemed to be a waiver of the Owner's rights against Design Professional.

#### **ARTICLE 11 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTES**

11.1 A claim is a written demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking as a matter of right adjustment or interpretation of the Contract terms, payment of money, extension of time or other relief with respect to the terms of this Contract. The term claim also includes other disputes and matters in question between the Owner and Design Professional arising out of or

relating to this Contract. All claims must be made in writing. The responsibility to substantiate claims will rest with the party making the claim.

- 11.2 Claims by Design Professional must be made in writing to the Owner within 20 calendar days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim or else Design Professional will be deemed to have waived the claim. Written supporting data will be submitted to the Owner within 30 calendar days after such occurrence unless the Owner allows additional time or else Design Professional will be deemed to have waived the claim. Claims by the Owner may be made at any time irrespective of the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim.
- 11.3 Unless otherwise agreed in writing and notwithstanding any other rights or obligations of either of the parties under this Contract, the Design Professional will carry on with the performance of its services and duties hereunder during the pendency of any claim, dispute, other matter in question or arbitration or any other proceedings to resolve any claim, dispute or other matter in question. The Owner, however, will be under no obligation to make payments on or against such claims, disputes or other matters in question during the pendency of any proceedings to resolve such claims, disputes or other matters in question.
- 11.4 Documents in support of the claim referred to in this Article may be subject to an independent Engagement by the Owner. In the event the Engagement supports the Design Professional's claim, the Owner will pay for the Engagement. In the event the Engagement does not support the Design Professional's claim, the Design Professional will pay for the Engagement.
- 11.5 Any action initiated by either party associated with a claim or dispute, will be brought in the appropriate State Court in and for Hillsborough County, Florida. The appropriate Florida State Court shall be the exclusive venue and jurisdiction for such action. Confidential mediation with a mediator approved by the Owner shall be a condition precedent to litigation.

#### ARTICLE 12 - ASSISTANCE IN LITIGATION

Design Professional will render assistance to and on behalf of the Owner in litigation in connection with or arising out of this Contract, including any litigation brought by or against the Owner and any third parties, by providing technical information, analyses and expert witnesses only for the Owner. The Design Professional will provide services under this Article at a mutually agreed upon and reasonable rate as an additional service.

#### ARTICLE 13 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Design Professional represents that it presently has no interest and will acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict, as determined by the Owner, in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder. Design Professional further represents that no persons having any such interest will be employed to perform these services.

#### ARTICLE 14 - NOTICES AND ADDRESS OF RECORD

14.1 All notices required or made pursuant to this Contract to be given by the Design

Professional to the Owner will be in writing and may be given either by mailing same by United States mail with proper postage affixed thereto, or by hand-delivery, to the appropriate address as listed below:

14.1.1 Mail:

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority

P. O. Box 22287

Tampa, FL 33622-2287

Attention: Chief Executive Officer

14.1.2 Hand-delivery: Hillsborough County Aviation Authority

Tampa International Airport

Third Level, Blue Side Tampa, FL 33607

Attention: Chief Executive Officer

#### ARTICLE 15 - TERM OF CONTRACT

The term of the Contract is November 3, 2016 through November 2, 2021, with two, five year renewal options at the sole discretion of the CEO or designee. Individual work orders may have effective dates and completion dates for the related scope of work. Provided, however, that any work orders issued prior to the termination date of this Contract will continue until complete.

#### ARTICLE 16 - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

- 16.1 This Contract may be terminated by the Owner with or without cause with a seven day written notice to the Design Professional.
- 16.2 In the event of termination not the fault of the Design Professional, the Design Professional will be compensated for services performed to the termination date, together with reimbursable expenses then due and termination expenses. Termination expenses are expenses directly attributable to termination, including reasonable compensation for overhead and profit. Reasonable compensation for overhead and profit will be established pursuant to negotiation.
- 16.3 In the event of termination for cause, the Owner may retain all payments due to the Design Professional at the date of termination until all of the Owner's damages have been established and deducted from payments due.
- 16.4 Upon 30 days written notice to Owner, Design Professional may terminate this Contract if Design Professional is not in default of any term, provision, or covenant of this Contract only upon or after the occurrence of any of the following events: the inability of Design Professional to perform work at an Owner airport for which a work order has been issued for a period of longer than 90 consecutive days due to war, terrorism, or the issuance of any order, rule or regulation by a competent governmental authority or court having jurisdiction over the Owner preventing Design Professional from operating its business for a period of 90 consecutive days provided, however, that such inability or such order, rule or regulation is not due to any fault or

negligence of Design Professional.

#### ARTICLE 17 - SUSPENSION OF WORK

The Owner may, for any reason, order the Design Professional in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the work in whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. If the work is stopped for a period exceeding 60 days by the Owner, the Design Professional may be entitled to additional compensation and expenses, said compensation and expenses to be established pursuant to negotiations between the parties.

#### ARTICLE 18 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

- 18.1 The Owner and Design Professional respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party to this Contract and to the partners, successors, and assigns of such other party with respect to the covenants of this Contract.
- 18.2 Except as hereinafter provided, neither party to this Contract will assign or sublet this Contract, in whole or in part, without the written consent of the other, nor will the Design Professional assign any monies due, or to become due, hereunder without the previous written consent of the Owner. If the Design Professional attempts to make such assignment or sublet without such consent, the Design Professional will nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under this Contract.
- 18.3 The Owner reserves the right to transfer its interests herein to any other governmental body authorized by law to operate the Airport.

#### **ARTICLE 19 - TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS**

The Design Professional certifies that the wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation described herein and in all work orders provided under this Contract are accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting and that the original contract price and any additions or work orders will be adjusted to exclude any significant sums where the Owner determines the contract price was increased due to inaccurate, incomplete or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs. All such adjustments will be made within one year following the end of any particular work order issued under this Contract.

## ARTICLE 20 - <u>CERTIFICATION OF DESIGN PROFESSIONAL/PROHIBITION AGAINST CONTINGENT</u> FEES

The Design Professional warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Design Professional, to solicit or secure this Contract, and that Design Professional has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Design Professional, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. If the Owner finds that Design Professional violates this provision, the Owner may terminate this Contract and any underlying work orders

without liability and, at its discretion, deduct from the Contract or work order, or otherwise recover, the full amount of any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or consideration.

#### ARTICLE 21 - PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME CERTIFICATION

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on an agreement to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on an agreement with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or design professional under an agreement with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statute Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

#### ARTICLE 22 - CONTRACT MADE IN FLORIDA

This Contract has been made in and will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. In any action initiated by one party against the other, venue will lie in Hillsborough County, Florida.

#### **ARTICLE 23 - NON-DISCRIMINATION**

- 23.1 During the performance of this Contract, the Design Professional, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest, agrees as follows:
  - 23.1.1 Compliance with regulations. The Design Professional must comply with the regulations relative to non-discrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (DOT) Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Contract.
  - 23.1.2 Civil Rights. Design Professional, with regard to the work performed by it under the Contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. Design Professional will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21. During the performance of this Contract, Design Professional, or itself, its assignees, and successors in interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:
    - 23.1.2.1 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

- 23.1.2.2 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964);
- 23.1.2.3 The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federalaid programs and projects);
- 23.1.2.4 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;
- 23.1.2.5 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- 23.1.2.6 Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- 23.1.2.7 The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);
- 23.1.2.8 Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;
- 23.1.2.9 The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- 23.1.2.10 Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

- 23.1.2.11 Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, Design Professional must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to Design Professional's programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); and
- 23.1.2.12 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits Design Professional from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).
- 23.1.3 Solicitations for subcontracts, including procurement of materials and equipment. In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Design Professional for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier must be notified by the Design Professional of the Design Professional's obligations under this Contract and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color or national origin.
- 23.1.4 Information and reports. The Design Professional must provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and must permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by the Owner or the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of Design Professional is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Design Professional will so certify to the Owner or the FAA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.
- 23.1.5 Sanctions for non-compliance. In the event of the Design Professional's non-compliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this Contract, the Owner will impose such contractual sanctions as it or the FAA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to, withholding of payments to the Design Professional under this Contract until the Design Professional complies, and/or cancellation, termination or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part.
- 23.1.6 Incorporation of provisions. The Design Professional must include the provisions of sub-articles 23.1.1 through 23.1.7 in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Design Professional must take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Owner or the FAA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, however, that in the event the Design Professional becomes involved in or is threatened by litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Design Professional may request the Owner to

- enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the Owner and, in addition, the Design Professional may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.
- 23.1.7 Design Professional assures that, in the performance of its obligations hereunder, it will fully comply with the requirements of 14 C.F.R. Part 152, Subpart E (Non-discrimination in Airport Aid Program), as amended from time to time, to the extent applicable to Design Professional, to ensure, among other things, that no person will be excluded from participating in any activities covered by such regulations on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, or sex. Design Professional, if required by such regulations, will provide assurances to the Owner that Design Professional will undertake an affirmative action program and will require the same of its subconsultants.

#### ARTICLE 24 – WOMAN AND MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (W/MBE) ASSURANCES

- 24.1. It is the policy of the Owner that W/MBEs, as defined in the Owner's W/MBE Policy and Program, will have full and fair opportunities to compete and participate in the performance of all non-federally funded agreements or in the purchase of goods and services procured by the Owner. Consequently, the W/MBE requirements and the Owner's W/MBE Policy and Program will apply to this Contract and are made a part hereof.
  - 24.1.1. The Design Professional and any subcontractor of the Design Professional will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of the Contract. The Design Professional will carry out applicable requirements of the Authority's W/MBE Policy and Program in the award and administration of agreements. Failure by the Design Professional to carry out these requirements will be a material breach of the Contract, which may result in the termination of the Contract or such other remedy as the Authority deems appropriate.
  - 24.1.2.The Design Professional agrees that it will not discriminate against any business owner because of the owner's race, color, national origin, or sex in connection with the award or performance of any agreement, management contract, or subcontract, purchase or lease agreement.
  - 24.1.3. The Design Professional agrees to include the statements in paragraphs (1) and (2) above in any subsequent agreement or contract that it enters and cause those businesses to similarly include the statements in further agreements.
- 24.2. The Design Professional agrees to ensure that W/MBEs, as defined in the Owner's W/MBE Policy and Program, have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of this Contract, and the Design Professional will take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance therewith to ensure that W/MBEs have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform subcontracts.
- 24.3. W/MBE Expectancies. Over the course of this Contract, it is anticipated that there will

be multiple work orders issued for different task assignments. While the majority of those task assignments may engage only the Design Professional, there may be tasks assigned that require the services of subconsultants. The Owner reserves the right to review each task assignment for opportunities by W/MBEs and establish a participation goal for the task assignment should it be determined that an opportunity exists. In the event the Owner engages the Design Professional to perform construction administration, inspection or implementation services for a construction project, the Owner will require a minimum 8.0% participation by W/MBEs for that work effort.

- 24.4. All W/MBEs interested in participating in contracting/subcontracting opportunities must be certified as eligible W/MBEs before said business enterprises begins their portion of the Contract. Only certified W/MBEs will count toward the W/MBE expectancy. If the Design Professional fails to achieve the W/MBE expectancy stated herein, it will be required to provide documentation demonstrating that it made good faith efforts in attempting to do so.
- 24.5. W/MBE Termination and Substitution: The Design Professional will not terminate a W/MBE for convenience without the Authority's prior written consent. If a W/MBE is terminated by the Design Professional with the Owner's consent or because of the W/MBE's default, then the Design Professional must make a good faith effort, in accordance with the requirements of the Owner's W/MBE Policy, to find another W/MBE to substitute for the original W/MBE to provide the same amount of W/MBE participation.
- 24.6. Reporting Requirements: The Design Professional agrees that, within 15 days after the expiration of each calendar month during the term of the Contract beginning on the effective date of the Contract, it will provide a W/MBE Utilization Activity report to the Owner's DBE Program Manager reflecting, as applicable, in a form acceptable to the Owner, the Design Professional's total dollar value received under the Contract for the applicable period and the amount expended for the purchase of goods and services from each W/MBE firm during that period, calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Owner's W/MBE Policy and Program.
- 24.7. Monitoring: The Owner will monitor the compliance and good faith efforts of the Design Professional in meeting these requirements. The Owner will have access to the necessary records to examine such information as may be appropriate for the purpose of investigating and determining compliance with this subsection, including, but not limited to, records, records of expenditures, contracts between the Design Professional and the W/MBE participant, and other records pertaining to the W/MBE participation plan, which the Design Professional will maintain for a minimum of three years following the end of the Contract. Opportunities for W/MBE participation will be reviewed prior to the exercise of any renewal, extension or material amendment of the Contract to consider whether an adjustment in the W/MBE requirement is warranted. Without limiting the requirements of the Contract, the Owner reserves the right to review and approve all subleases or subcontracts utilized by the Design Professional for the achievement of these goals.
- 24.8. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Design Professional agrees to indemnify the Owner from the loss of any funds or other damages that may result from Design Professional's failure to

achieve the W/MBE expectancies set forth herein or to establish a good faith effort to do so, including attorneys' fees and costs associated with said failure by Design Professional or good faith investigation by Owner. If the previous sentence is found to conflict in any way with applicable law, the previous sentence will be considered modified by such law to the extent necessary to remedy the conflict. Failure of Design Professional to make a good faith effort to achieve W/MBE expectancies will be a material breach of this Contract. The determination of whether Design Professional's efforts were made in good faith will be made by the Owner. At 50% completion, a plan of action properly reflecting anticipated W/MBE achievement of the commitment is required to be submitted to the Owner.

- 24.9. In the event of the Design Professional's non-compliance with the Owner's W/MBE Policy and Program, failure to meet the prescribed W/MBE expectancy set forth in this Contract, or failure to establish a good faith effort to do so, the Owner will impose such contract sanctions as the Owner may determine to be appropriate, including but not limited to:
  - 24.9.1. Withholding of payments to the Design Professional under this Contract until the Design Professional complies; and/or
  - 24.9.2. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Contract in whole or in part; and/or
  - 24.9.3. Debarment or suspension of Design Professional from eligibility to contract with the Owner in the future or to receive bid packages or request for qualification (RFQ) packages.

#### ARTICLE 25 - PROHIBITION AGAINST CONTRACTING WITH SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES

This Contract will be terminated in accordance with Florida Statute Section 287.135(3) if it is found that Company submitted a false Scrutinized Company Certification as provided in Florida Statute Section 287.135(5) or, has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Florida Statute Section 215.473.

#### ARTICLE 26 – E-VERIFY REQUIREMENT

In accordance with the State of Florida, Office of the Governor, Executive Order Number 11-116 (Verification of Employment Status), all agencies under the direction of the Governor are to include as a condition of all state contracts for the provision of goods or services to the state in excess of nominal value, an express requirement that contractors utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the contractor during the contract term, and an express requirement that contractors include in such subcontracts the requirement that subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to the state contract utilize the E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the contract term. Any projects with Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) funding will contain this assurance as a condition for any new Joint Participation Contracts dated after January 4, 2011.

The Design Professional will verify all of their new employees and will require that their subcontractors verify all of their new employees in accordance with the E-verify requirements set out above.

#### ARTICLE 27 - COMPLETE CONTRACT

This Contract represents the entire and fully integrated Contract between the Owner and the Design Professional and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or contracts, either written or oral. This Contract may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the Owner and the Design Professional.

proper officers, duly authorized to do so.				
By the Design Professional this		day of		_, 20
ATTEST:		Lea & Elli	ott, Inc.	
	By:			
	Title:			
			Print Name	
		1	Print Address	
Signed, sealed, and delivered in the presence of:				
Witness				
Print Name				
Witness				
Print Name				
Notary for Lea & Elliott, Inc.				
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH				
The foregoing instrument was acknobyof	in t	the capacity of		
(Name of organization or company, if any)	a	(Corporation / Partn	ership / Sole Propr	ietor / Other)
on behalf (They are / He	e is / She is	s) (Personally know	n to me <u>/not</u> perso	nally known t
me)and has produced the following document of ident	and			_ take an oath
and has produced the following document of ident	tification)	(they / he / she)	(did / did not)	
(Seal of Notary)		Sign	ature of Notary	

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and corporate seals by their

By the Owner this	day of _	, 20
	HILLSBORG	OUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY
(Affix Corporate Seal)		
	Ву:	
ATTEST:		Robert I. Watkins, Chairman
Victor D. Crist, Secretary	_	
Signed, sealed, and delivered in the presence of:		
Witness		
Print Name		
Witness	_	
Print Name	_	
	Ву:	Michael T. Kamprath, Assistant General Counsel
Notary for Hillsborough County Aviation A STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH	Authority	
Watkins, in the capacity of Chairman, and by	Victor D. Cunder the	re me this day of, 20, by Robert I. Crist, in the capacity of Secretary, Hillsborough County laws of the State of Florida, on its behalf. They are
		Signature of Notary
		Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority
Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional at Tampa International Airport
Solicitation Number: 16-411-029

Name	Job Title	Raw Rate (\$/hour)	FAR Audited Overhead (\$/hr)	Profit (\$/hour)	Hourly Billing Rate (\$/hr)	Billing Multiplier
			TOTAL CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY O			
			166.50%	10.00%		
Sanjeev Shah, PE,JD	Program Manager	\$ 98.85	\$ 164.59	\$ 26.34	\$ 289.78	2.93
Guadalupe Murillo, PE	Lead ATS Designer	\$ 66.88	\$ 111.36	\$ 17.82	\$ 196.06	2.93
Rod Falvey, PE	Principal	\$ 95.46	\$ 158.94	\$ 25.44	\$ 279.84	2.93
Ronald Sheahan	Principal	\$ 95.49	\$ 158.99	\$ 25.45	\$ 279.93	2.93
G. John Kennedy	Principal	\$ 109.09	\$ 181.63	\$ 29.07	\$ 319.80	2.93
Daniel McFadden, PE	Associate Principal	\$ 88.21	\$ 146.87	\$ 23.51	\$ 258.59	2.93
Kamei Mokhtech, PhD, PE	Associate Principal	\$ 84.37	\$ 140.48	\$ 22.48	\$ 247.33	2.93
John Graddy, PE	Associate Principal	\$ 84.37	\$ 140.48	\$ 22.48	\$ 247.33	2.93
Russell Green, PE	Associate Principal	\$ 89.30	\$ 148.68	\$ 23.80	\$ 261.78	2.93
Ted Barker	Associate Principal	\$ 84.37	\$ 140.48	\$ 22.48	\$ 247.33	2.93
Sambit Bhattacharjee, PE	Associate Principal	\$ 82.41	\$ 137.21	\$ 21.96	\$ 241.58	2.93
Jeff Davis, PE	Sr Associate	\$ 81.92	\$ 136.40	\$ 21.83	\$ 240.15	2.93
Larry Coleman	Sr Associate	\$ 79.03	\$ 131.58	\$ 21.06	\$ 231.68	2.93
Aaron Hester, PE	Sr Associate	\$ 66.88	\$ 111.36	\$ 17.82	\$ 196.06	2.93
Mark Incorvati	Sr Associate	\$ 86.58	\$ 144.16	\$ 23.07	\$ 253.81	2.93
Scott Sipes	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 64.31	\$ 107.08	\$ 17.14	\$ 188.52	2.93
Gregory Love	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 63.28	\$ 105.36	\$ 16.86	\$ 185.51	2.93
Curtis Newton, P.E.	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 68.58	\$ 114.19	\$ 18.28	\$ 201.04	2.93
Dennis Hinish	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 81.72	\$ 136.06	\$ 21.78	\$ 239.56	2.93
Jackie C. Yang	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 60.00	\$ 99.90	\$ 15.99	\$ 175.89	2.93
Iris Yuan	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 61.50	\$ 102.40	\$ 16.39	\$ 180.29	2.93
Laura Espinoza, P.E.	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 54.40	\$ 90.58	\$ 14.50	\$ 159.47	2.93
Mohammad El-Shrafi	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 72.12	\$ 120.08	\$ 19.22	\$ 211.42	2.93
Paul Kovacs	Manager of Eng. Projects	\$ 61.15	\$ 101.81	\$ 16.30	\$ 179.26	2.93
Brian Yeschenko	Senior Transportation Engineer	\$ 64.46	\$ 107.33	\$ 17.18	\$ 188.96	2.93
Alex Perez, PE	Senior Transportation Engineer	\$ 58.47	\$ 97.35	\$ 15.58	\$ 171.40	2.93
David Porterfield	Sr. Systems Specialist/Consultant	\$ 63.75	\$ 106.14	\$ 16.99	\$ 186.88	2.93

Genaro Steve Alvarez	Systems Specialist/Consultant	\$ 61.30	\$ 102.06	\$ 16.34	\$ 179.70	2.93
Gustavo Cevallos	Senior Engineer	\$ 60.43	\$ 100.62	\$ 16.10	\$ 177.15	2.93
Carissa Cyprien	Engineer	\$ 31.27	\$ 52.06	\$ 8.33	\$ 91.67	2.93
Eduardo Cuadra	Engineer	\$ 31.61	\$ 52.63	\$ 8.42	\$ 92.66	2.93
Jose Gomez	Engineer	\$ 29.74	\$ 49.52	\$ 7.93	\$ 87.18	2.93
Alexander Robbins, PE	Engineer	\$ 32.55	\$ 54.20	\$ 8.67	\$ 95.42	2.93
Said Elmalt	Engineer	\$ 43.37	\$ 72.21	\$ 11.56	\$ 127.14	2.93
Doug Draper	Project Support/CAD Specialist	\$ 32.50	\$ 54.11	\$ 8.66	\$ 95.27	2.93
Robert Parsons	Project Engineer	\$ 40.05	\$ 66.68	\$ 10.67	\$ 117.41	2.93
David Seo	Project Engineer	\$ 20.19	\$ 33.62	\$ 5.38	\$ 59.19	2.93
David A. Iglesias	Project Engineer	\$ 21.09	\$ 35.11	\$ 5.62	\$ 61.83	2.93
Jacquelyn Caro-Szufar	Project Engineer	\$ 55.29	\$ 92.06	\$ 14.73	\$ 162.08	2.93
Crystal Oczkowski	Senior Technical Coordinator	\$ 43.11	\$ 71.78	\$ 11.49	\$ 126.38	2.93
Michiyo Kozuma	Technical Support	\$ 24.04	\$ 40.03	\$ 6.41	\$ 70.47	2.93
Michael McFadden	Technical Support	\$ 17.42	\$ 29.00	\$ 4.64	\$ 51.07	2.93
Sophia Mucino	Technical Support	\$ 31.24	\$ 52.01	\$ 8.33	\$ 91.58	2.93
Barbara Soto	Technical Support	\$ 22.58	\$ 37.60	\$ 6.02	\$ 66.19	2.93

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional at Tampa International Airport Solicitation Number: 16-411-029

Name	Job Title	Raw Rate (\$/hour)	FAR Audited Overhead (\$/hr)	Profit (\$/hour)	Hourly Billing Rate (\$/hr)	Billing Multiplier
			140.50%	10.00%		
Armando A. Castellon	Senior Principal Struct. Eng.	\$ 70.67	\$ 99.29	\$ 17.00	\$ 186.96	2.65
James R. Mehltretter	Senior Principal Struct. Eng.	\$ 70.67	\$ 99.29	\$ 17.00	\$ 186.96	2.65
Robert Bell	Senior Principal Struct. Eng.	\$ 47.60	\$ 66.88	\$ 11.45	\$ 125.93	2.65
Haitham Moussly	Principal	\$ 60.00	\$ 84.30	\$ 14.43	\$ 158.73	2.65
Cody Davis	Principal Struct. Eng.	\$ 30.77	\$ 43.23	\$ 7.40	\$ 81.40	2.65
Tehetna F. Tesfaye	Project Manager Struct. Eng.	\$ 31.32	\$ 44.00	\$ 7.53	\$ 82.86	2.65
Ryan Beckley	Struct. Engineer	\$ 27.40	\$ 38.50	\$ 6.59	\$ 72.49	2.65
Stevie Lockhart	Struct. Engineer	\$ 27.40	\$ 38.50	\$ 6.59	\$ 72.49	2.65
Cory Nelson	CAD Technichian	\$ 24.00	\$ 33.72	\$ 5.77	\$ 63.49	2.65
Luis Bridat	Struct. Engineer	\$ 22.95	\$ 32.24	\$ 5.52	\$ 60.71	2.65
Leandro Corrales	Struct, Engineer	\$ 23.10	\$ 32.46	\$ 5.56	\$ 61.11	2.65
Nelson Dacanay	Struct. Engineer	\$ 26.44	\$ 37.15	\$ 6.36	\$ 69.95	2.65
John Webber	Senior CAD Tech	\$ 27.30	\$ 38.36	\$ 6.57	\$ 72.22	2.65
Yaniree Roman	Senior CAD Tech	\$ 23.00	\$ 32.32	\$ 5.53	\$ 60.85	2.65
Josef Browseski	CAD Technichian	\$ 20.00	\$ 28.10	\$ 4.81	\$ 52.91	2.65
Vacquelin Connor	CAD Technichian	\$ 16.00	\$ 22.48	\$ 3.85	\$ 42.33	2.65
Katheryn Cuevas	CAD Technichian	\$ 15.00	\$ 21.08	\$ 3.61	\$ 39.68	2.65
lan Denegri	CAD Technichian	\$ 17.00	\$ 23.89	\$ 4.09	\$ 44.97	2.65
Alberto Castellon	Clerical / Accounting	\$ 24.00	\$ 33.72	\$ 5.77	\$ 63.49	2.65

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority
Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional at Tampa International Airport
Solicitation Number: 16-411-029

Name	Job Title	Raw Rate (\$/hour)	FAR Audited Overhead (\$/hr)	Profit (\$/hour)	Hourly Billing Rate (\$/hr)	Billing Multiplier
THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY O						
			127.00%	10.00%		
Julio Lostao	Estimating/VE Manager	\$ 77.25	\$ 98.11	\$ 17.54	\$ 192.89	2.50
Gabriel Jauregui	Estimator II	\$ 48.23	\$ 61.25	\$ 10.95	\$ 120.43	2.50
Julian Ortega	Scheduling Manager	\$ 74.16	\$ 94.18	\$ 16.83	\$ 185.18	2.50
Eduardo Tude	Scheduler III	\$ 64.90	\$ 82.42	\$ 14.73	\$ 162.06	2.50
Soraya Rivera	Scheduler II	\$ 47.40	\$ 60.20	\$ 10.76	\$ 118.36	2.50
Melvin Ramrirez	Senior Cost Engineer	\$ 55.10	\$ 69.98	\$ 12.51	\$ 137.58	2.50
TBD	Project Management Assistant	\$ 33.50	\$ 42.55	\$ 7.60	\$ 83.65	2.50
ТВD	Administrative Assistant	\$ 28.30	\$ 35.94	\$ 6.42	\$ 70.67	2.50
		÷	÷.	<b>.</b> -	ţ	#DIV/0!
		\$	\$	\$ -	\$	#DIV/0]
		÷	\$	\$	÷	#DIV/0!
		- \$	- \$	\$	- \$	#DIV/0!
		- \$	- \$	- \$	- \$	#DIV/0i

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional at Tampa International Airport Solicitation Number: 16-411-029

Name	Job Title	Raw Rate (\$/hour)	FAR Audited Overhead (\$/hr)	Profit (\$/hour)	Hourly Billing Rate (\$/hr)	Billing Multiplier
			159.78%	10.00%		
Amazia Kiboko, PE	Chief Engineer	\$ 110.58	\$ 176.68	\$ 28.73	\$ 315.99	2.86
Juan Kuthy	Senior Communication / ITS Specialist	\$ 70.00	\$ 111.85	\$ 18.18	\$ 200.03	2.86
Roberto Carlo Adair, PE	Senior Project Engineer	\$ 62.50	\$ 99.86	\$ 16.24	\$ 178.60	2.86
Armando Ramirez, PE	Electrical Engineer	\$ 29.50	\$ 47.14	\$ 7.66	\$ 84.30	2.86
Luis Capurro	Senior Electrical Inspector	\$ 30.50	\$ 48.73	\$ 7.92	\$ 87.16	2.86
Samara Cheda	Designer	\$ 33.25	\$ 53.13	\$ 8.64	\$ 95.01	2.86
Abul Omor Sharif, Phd, El	ITS & Communication Inspector	\$ 28.50	\$ 45.54	\$ 7.40	\$ 81.44	2.86
Jorge Baez	Inspector	\$ 22.00	\$ 35.15	\$ 5.72	\$ 62.87	2.86
Isaac Sevy	Technician	\$ 19.00	\$ 30.36	\$ 4.94	\$ 54.29	2.86
Julie Boyce	Secretary	\$ 22.50	\$ 35.95	\$ 5.85	\$ 64.30	2.86
		- \$	\$ -	\$	÷	#DIV/0!
		- \$	÷	- \$	· ·	#DIV/0!
		- \$	\$ -	- \$	- \$	#DIV/0!
		\$	\$ -	- -	٠ \$	#DIV/0!
		; \$	- -	`	· .	#DIV/0!
		٠.	- \$	\$	· \$	#DIV/0!

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional at Tampa International Airport Solicitation Number: 16-411-029

Name	Job Title	Raw Rate (\$/hour)	FAR Audited Overhead (\$/hr)	Profit (\$/hour)	Hourly Billing Rate (\$/hr)	Billing Multiplier
			154.00%	10.00%		
Celis, Danny	Sr. Mechanical Engineer	\$ 38.63	\$ 59.49	\$ 9.81	\$ 107.93	2.79
Chanis, Sam	Mechanical/Fire Protectio	\$ 32.19	\$ 49.57	\$ 8.18	\$ 89.94	2.79
Davis, Andrew	Mechanical Engineer I	\$ 25.23	\$ 38.85	\$ 6.41	\$ 70.49	2.79
Davis, Julius	Principal/Elec Engineer of	\$ 82.40	\$ 126.90	\$ 20.93	\$ 230.23	2.79
Eldridge, Eric	Sr. Mechanical Engineer	\$ 40.41	\$ 62.23	\$ 10.26	\$ 112.91	2.79
Freeman, David	Dir Electrical Engineeirng	\$ 46.25	\$ 71.23	\$ 11.75	\$ 129.22	2.79
Hill, Robert	Project Manager/Sr. Elec E	\$ 41.35	\$ 63.68	\$ 10.50	\$ 115.53	2.79
Louis, Elohim	Graduate Electrical Engine	\$ 24.52	\$ 37.76	\$ 6.23	\$ 68.51	2.79
Marlow, Anthony	Mechanical Designer	\$ 36.39	\$ 56.04	\$ 9.24	\$ 101.67	2.79
Martinez, Francisco	Electrical Engineer	\$ 36.00	\$ 55.44	\$ 9.14	\$ 100.58	2.79
McGuirk, Bill	Electrical Engineer	\$ 33.07	\$ 50.93	\$ 8.40	\$ 92.40	2.79
Moreno, Nestor	Electrical Designer	\$ 24.04	\$ 37.02	\$ 6.11	\$ 67.17	2.79
Mujbegovic, Nedim	Sr. Electrical Engineer	\$ 41.52	\$ 63.94	\$ 10.55	\$ 116.01	2.79
Perez, Mauricio	Engineer II	\$ 44.23	\$ 68.11	\$ 11.23	\$ 123.58	2.79
Roberts, Kenny	Sr. Mechanical Designer	\$ 41.19	\$ 63.43	\$ 10.46	\$ 115.08	2.79
Shorey, Rob	Sr. Mechanical Designer	\$ 35.63	\$ 54.87	\$ 9.05	\$ 99.55	2.79
Young, Roland	Sr. Mechanical Engineer/Engineer of	\$ 44.26	\$ 68.16	\$ 11.24	\$ 123.66	2.79
Zemina, Bryan	Mechanical Engineer I	\$ 37.88	\$ 58.34	\$ 9.62	\$ 105.84	2.79



Hillsborough County Aviation Authority PO Box 22287 Tampa, FL 33622 Telephone: 813-870-8700

#### **E-Verify Certification**

# Solicitation No. 16-411-029 AUTOMATED TRANSIT SYSTEM (ATS) DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

This certification is required in accordance with the State of Florida, Office of the Governor, Executive Order Number 11-116 (Verification of Employment Status).

The State of Florida, Office of the Governor, Executive Order Number 11-116 (Verification of Employment Status), and any projects with Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) funding as part of a Joint Participation Agreement between FDOT and the Authority, require, as a condition of all contracts for the provision of goods or services, an express requirement that contractors utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the contractor during the term of the contract, and an express requirement that contractors include in subcontracts the requirement that subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to the contract utilize the E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the contract term.

Company:		FID or EIN No.:	
Address:		City/State/Zip:	
l,	, as a representative of,		
certify and affirm that this company will comply with the E-Verification requirements of Executive Order			
Number 11-116.			
Signature		Title	
Printed Name		Date	

TPA / Automated Transit System (ATS) Design Professional

[Affix Corporate Resolution if not signed by the President or Vice President of the Company]